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To Our Shareholders
Ladies, Gentlemen and NAPESCO Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors and NAPESCO’s employees, I welcome you and am 

pleased to present our 2016 Annual Report.

I would like to share with you some important developments related to our operational 
and contractual activities which reflect the company’s achievements within the 
framework of its tireless efforts and competence with large local and international 
companies.

Achievements for the year 2016 include the following:

- We received a purchase order from Kuwait Oil Company for the Supply of Drilling Support 

Equipment (Float Equipment) for a total value of KD 707,125.   

- We have been awarded five years contract- with 6 months optional extension- from Kuwait Oil 

Company for Maintenance of their Firefighting Systems, valued at KD 10,516,378.

- A replacement contract has been awarded to us for Cementing and Associated Services by 

Kuwait Oil Company amounting to KD 22,907,651 for a period of 15 months. 

- We have secured a 38 months contract valued at KD 696,970 with Kuwait National Petroleum 

Company for the Provision of Environmental Monitoring, Laboratory and Industrial Hygiene 

Services for Refineries.

- We secured a five year contract with Kuwait Oil Company for the Provision of Specialized Services 

for Health, Safety and Environment Resources to Support in the Effective Implementation of 

HSE Management System valued at KD 5,589,203.

- We have been awarded five year contract valued at KD 6,298,170 for the Provision of Waste 

Management Services within South & East and Expert & Marine Operational Areas of Kuwait 

Oil Company.

The company’s outlook and strategic objectives aim to increase and develop services offered to its key customers 
and maximize its market share by developing and delivering services and equipment to suit the potential size of 
company’s contracts. 
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   The Financial Results for the year ending 31/12/2016 include the following: 

- The Company generated revenue from Sales & Services amounting to KD 27,002,458 in 2016 compared 

with KD 19,609,328 in 2015, an increase of 37.7%.

- A Net Profit of KD 7,710,022 was realized in 2016 (137.71 Fills per Share) compared with KD 5,684,989 

in 2015 (101.60 Fills per Share), an increase of 35.62%.

- Shareholders’ Equity increased to KD 24,793,556 in 2016 compared with KD 20,452,150 in 2015, an 

increase of 21.22%.

Thus, the Company maintains a continuous upward growth in achieving greater revenues and higher profits.

The Board of Directors has recommended 80% of the nominal share value (80 fills per share) to be allotted as cash 

dividend to the shareholders for the year ending 31/12/2016.  In addition, 73.58245% of the company’s Shares 

to be allotted to the Shareholders as Bonus Shares.

The Board of Directors has recommended to reward the members of the Board of Directors with a total 

of KD 115,000.

In light of the Company’s results, achievements and the rates of profits realized, the Board of Directors extend 

their sincere appreciation and gratitude to all employees of the Company who have participated and contributed 

to this success.

Finally, I would like to thank the Company’s Board of Directors for their continuous support and I wish them every 

success and pray for the continuation of this success trend enabling us to serve our shareholders and our beloved 

country Kuwait.

_____________________

Omran Habib Jawhar Hayat

Chairman
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THE AuDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

NATIONAl PETROlEuM SERvICES COMPANY 

FOR THE FISCAl YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in the performance of supervisory responsibilities for 

financial reporting process and internal control system and the audit process and procedures for monitoring 

the company’s compliance with laws and regulations and the rules of professional conduct. The Committee 

consists of three (3) members, including an independent member. The Commission reviews any accounting 

matters important, including complex and unusual transactions and areas that contain professional and 

regulatory reports, and understand their impact on the financial statements and express their opinions and make 

recommendations to the Board of Directors. It also reviews the audit results with the company’s management 

and monitors the external auditors, including any difficulties faced by the results. The audit of financial 

statements is done on a regular basis prior to submission to the Board of Directors, and the Committee submits 

their views and recommendations on the matter to the Board of Directors in order to ensure the transparency 

and fairness of the financial reports.

FuNCTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment 

and removal of the external auditor. If the Committee determines that there is a need to change the 

external auditor, the Committee will submit its recommendations to the Board about the need to monitor 

a new external auditor and the criteria for selecting the new auditor.

Resolve any disagreements between the company management and the auditor regarding financial 

reporting.

Pre-approve all audit services and other services.

Hire a consultant or independent accountants or others to advise the company or to assist in an 

investigation.

Request any information needed by the Commission from the staff. All staff members are instructed to 

cooperate in meeting the requests of the Committee or with external parties, and meeting with company 

officials and observers of the external auditors or outside counsel as necessary.

Assess the adequacy in the company’s internal control systems and prepare a review of the internal 

control report.

Report regularly to the Board on the work of the Commission and related issues and related 

recommendations.



11

Provide an open channel of communication between the internal audit department and the external 

auditors and the Board of Directors.

Summary of Audit Committee meetings:

Member Name Role

Meeting 

1

Meeting

2

Meeting 

3

Meeting 

4

Meeting 

5

Meeting 

6

Meeting 

7

July 27, 

2016

November 

1st, 2016

November 

13th, 2016

Sheikh. Hamad 
Jaber Al Sabah

Chairman of 

Committee √ √ √

Mr.FahadYacoub 
Al Jouan

Member √ √ √

Mr. Munawer 
Anwar Al Nouri

Member √ x √

Mrs. Kawkab 
Khalil Mohamad

BOD 

Secretary √ √ √
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CORPORATE GOvERNANCE REPORT 

NATIONAl PETROlEuM SERvICES CO.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2016
NAPESCO Board of Directors (the board) is committed to comply with the requirements of corporate governance rules & 
principles. In this regard, the board has approved a number of charters, policies, and procedures (CG Documents) that fulfill 
the requirements of the fifteenth book of the executive bylaw of the law No. 7 for the year 2010 and its amendments issued 
in November 2015. To prepare these CG documents, the board has rendered the services of one of the biggest specialized 
consultancy offices in the region in order to make sure that they completely fulfill the eleven rules of the corporate governance. 
The Board has assigned one of the competent company’s employees the responsibility of ensuring the effective implementation 
of the CG documents as well as assisting the board and its specialized committees in carrying out their related tasks
It’s worth noting that the implementation of the corporate governance requirements principally aims at safeguarding the 
shareholders interests as well as regulating the relationships between the board and stakeholders by documenting institutional 
work flow procedures which accurately defines the company’s processes utilizing a transparent and reliable manner 
in handling the company’s business information and data. This is to ensure a higher level of investors’ confidence in the 
company’s performance
The board has established new functions within the company to carry out the relevant tasks such as the formation of new 
departments of Internal Audit, Risk & Compliance, and Investor Relations. The board also hired specialized consultancy 
firms to assist its members in fulfilling their assigned tasks as well as an independent audit firm to examine the internal control 
systems, recommend on insufficient controls, and report the findings to the board. A list of CG Documents is shown below:

Board Committee Charter Shareholder & Stakeholder Policy

Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee Charter

Board and Executive Management Training & Performance 
Evaluation Framework Policy

Audit Committee Charter CSR Policy

Risk Management Committee Charter Conflict of Interest Policy
Internal Audit Charter Whistle Blower Hotline Policy

Board Membership Criteria Policy Data Privacy and Confidentiality Policy
External Auditor Policy Profit Distribution Policy
Code of Conduct & Ethics Policy Related Party Policy

Disclosure & Transparency Policy

The board has defined the roles, responsibilities, and authorities of its members through detailed job descriptions of chairman, 
board members, CEO, board secretary, and executive management members. The board also has approved a documented 
procedure of the board members & executive management training and awareness aims at motivating them to effectively 
contribute to establishing and following up on company’s strategies. They have also developed a documented framework of 
board members & executive management performance evaluation & key performance indicators. This process should make 
the general assembly recognize the individual performance of the board members and executive management transparently. 
Attached to this report, and to enhance the transparency culture within the company, the board nomination & remuneration 
committee has prepared a detailed remuneration report which contains all compensation, rewards, benefits, etc paid or given 
to each board & executive management member as well as a summary report which contains a brief of company’s and 
board’s achievements throughout the year ended at December 31st 2016
The board, represented by the chairman and the executive management represented by the financial manager have signed 
off on undertaking statements to declare to the best of their knowledge the correctness and accuracy of the company’s 
financial data to emphasize on the accountability principle and to enhance the stakeholders and shareholders confidence in 
the transparency and reliability of company’s business performance
Furthermore, the concerned company’s departments have established policies & procedures manuals for the relevant 
corporate governance requirements such as internal audit manual, risk & compliance manual, and investor relations manual. 
Any concerned party may look at CG Documents by contacting the investor relation unit or browsing the company’s website
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Below is a list of board members names, qualifications, past experiences, and their contribution to the board meetings held 
during the year 2016 followed by a list of board committees and a summary of their meetings throughout the year 2016

Name
Ranking member 

(Executive/non-executive/
independent), Secretary

Qualification and experience
Date of election/

appointment 
Secretary

Mr. Omran Habib Jouhar Hayat Chairman
Bachelor of engineering and master of business 
administration – experience in real estate 
development and companies’ management

30/04/2014

Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif Deputy Chairman & CEO Bachelor of electrical engineering – experience in 
the oil sector and general management 30/3/2014

Sheikh Hamad Jaber Al-Subah Member (independent) Bachelor of finance – experience in accounting, 
auditing  and general management 30/04/2014

Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat Member (independent) Bachelor of business administration and finance – experience 
in investment management and general management 30/04/2014

Mr. Fahad Yaaqoub Al-Jouan Member (non-executive) Bachelor business administration-General 
management and investment experience. 30/04/2014

Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri Member (non-executive) Bachelor of Finance & Accounts –  experience in 
accounting & audit and general management 30/04/2014

Mr. Muhaimen Ali Behbehani Member (non-executive) Bsc mechanical engineering – experience in the oil 
sector and general management 30/04/2014

Ms. Kawkab Khalil The Secretary Institute of business professionals — experience in 
Administrative Affairs 18/02/2015

Member name
meeting 

(1) held on 
18/02/2016

meeting 
(2) held on 
31/03/2016

meeting 
(3) held on 
14/04/2016

meeting 
(4) held on 
27/07/2016

meeting 
(5) held on 
13/11/2016

meeting(6) 
held on 

29/12/2016

N0. Of 
Meetings

Mr. Omran Habib Jouhar Hayat ü ü ü ü ü ü 6

Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif ü ü ü × ü ü 5

Sheikh Hamad Jaber Al-Subah
Member (independent)

ü ü ü ü ü ü 6

Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat
Member (independent)

ü ü ü ü ü ü 6

Mr. Fahad Yaaqoub Al-Jouan 
Member (non-executive) ü ü ü ü ü ü 6

Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri 
Member (non-executive) ü × × ü ü ü 4

Mr. Muhaimen Ali Behbehani 
Member (non-executive) ü ü ü × ü ü 5

List of board committees and a summary of their meetings

 The number of meetings and business

summary

 Date and duration

 of the work of the

Committee

MembersCommittee name

 Three meetings including review of audit and
 risk departments reports and follow up the
performance of Audit and Risk consultants

14-April-2016
Mr. Hamad Jaber Al-Subah – Committee Chief
Mr. Fahad Yaaqoub Al-Jouan-member
Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri-member

Internal audit and 
risk management 
committee.

 Committee did not meet during the second
 half of 2016 and started their meetings
from the beginning of 2017

14-April-2016
Mr. Muhaimen Ali Behbehani- Committee Chief
Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif-member
Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat-member

Nomination and 

remuneration 

Committee

 Two meetings - medium term investment
Opportunities were discussed

31-March-2016
Mr. Omran Habib Jouhar Hayat- Committee Chief
Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif
Mr. Fahad Yaaqoub Al-Jouan-member

Investment 
Committee
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Name of the Company : National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C) 

Commercial Registration No. : 49911 dated 28 March 1993

Date Established : 3rd of January 1993

Date Listed on the K S E : 18th of October 2003

Address : Shuaibah Industrial Area, Blk 3, St. 6, Plot 76

P.O. Box : 9801 Ahmadi 61008 Kuwait

Tel. : (965)  22251000 

Fax : (965)  22251010

Website : www.napesco.com

Authorized Capital : KD 5,760,951

Paid Up : KD 5,760,951

Nominal Value of the Share : 100 Fils

Auditor

Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners
ERNST & YOUNG

Address Safat Square Bool, Kuwait , 18-21st Floor, Baitak Tower, Ahmed Al-Jaber St.

P.O. Box : 74 Safat 13006 Kuwait

Tel. : +965 2295 5000

Fax  : +965 22456419

Email : kuwait@kw.ey.com - ey.com/mena

www.ey.com/me

             

Accountants and Consultants

Address Al-Shaheed Tower, 6th Floor

Khalid Ben Al-Waleed Street, Sharq, Kuwait

P.O. Box : 25578, Safat 13116 Kuwait

Tel. : +965 2242 6999

Fax : +965 2240 1666

Email : www.bdointmational.com

COMPANY OuTlINE
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CERTIFICATES & AWARDS



16

ACCREDITION / CERTIFICATION

KuWAIT OIl COMPANY
TUBULAR CLEANING SERVICES

LABORATORY ANALYTICAL SERVICES FOR SOIL, OIL AND WATER (SOW)

WELL TESTING SERVICES

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

LOCAL RECRUITMENT

MAINTENANCE OF FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM

CEMENTING SERVICES

COILD TUBING,NITROGEN AND STIMULATION SERVICES

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANCY

HEALTH, SAFETY, ENVIRONMENTAL AND MANAGEMENT SYS-

TEM CONSULTANCY SERVICES

WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

KuWAIT PETROlEuM CORPORATION
TRAINING  SERVICES PROVIDER

KuWAIT NATIONAl PETROlEuM COMPANY
INDUSTRIAL HYGIENE

HAZOP ASSESSMENT

SAFETY & FIRE

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF SLUDGE HANDLING

MAINTENANCE OF ON-LINED AND LABORATORY ANALYZERS

FIRE SUPPRESSION AGENT AND SYSTEMS INSTALLATION

HALON PHASE OUT CONSULTANCY

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

ENVIRONMENT IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY

ONLINE LABORATORY MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

SUPPLY, INSTALL , COMM & MAINT OF FIRE EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS

LEAK DETECTION & REPAIRING SERVICES (Partnership)

OIL SPILL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT (Partnership)

QUANTATIVE RISK ASSESSMENT (QRA) STUDIES

JOINT OPERATIONS - WAFRA

WELL TESTING SERVICES

WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

ENGINEERING & RISK ASSESSMENT SERVICES

ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION AND EARTH MOVING WORKS

ANALYTICAL LABORATORY SERVICES

OILY VISCOUS LIQUID TREATMENT 

FIRE ALARM AND FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM, DESIGN SURVEY AND ASSESSMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANCY  & MONITORING 

SAFETY CONSULTANCY

CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM

JOINT OPERATIONS - KHAFJI

CRUDE OILY SLUDGE TREATMENT 

HYDROCARBON CONTAMINATED SOIL TREATMENT

SEISMIC DATA INTERPRETATION & QUALITY CONTROL

ASBESTOS CONSULTANCY 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANCY

INDOOR AIR QUALITY  SERVICES 

STACK EMISSION MONITORING SERVICES 

PRINCIPAl COMPANIES

PETROCHEMICAl INDuSTRIES COMPANY (PIC)

FIRE FIGHTING & FIRE ALARM MAINTENANCE 

SERVICES

LEED CONSULTANCY

ONLINE LABORATORY MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

Company Name Country of Origin Services

FlOWSERvE lIMITORQuE U.S.A. ACTUATORS (ELECTRIC, PNEUMATIC, HYDRAULIC), MOTORISED VALVES

ENSERvE  ENGG PvT lTD SOUTH AFRICA LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIRING AND  EMISSION MONITORING

MEKE DENIZ TEMIZIlIGI lTD.SERvICES TURKEY OIL SPILL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

CHINA OIl HBP SCIENCE & TECHNOlOGY CORPORATION lTD. CHINA PRODUCTION TEST SEPARATORS, PROCESS EQUIPMENTS

FIlTERS S.R.l ITALY PROCESS FILTERS

HIRO NISHA SYSTEMS PvT, lTD. INDIA HIGH PRESSURE, POSITIVE DISPLACEMENT TRIPLEX PLUNGER PUMPS

SWElORE ENGG. PvT. lTD INDIA CHEMICAL DOSING /INJECTION PUMPS & SKID PACKAGES

WEIR SPECIAlTY PuMPS CO. / FlOWAY U.S.A. PUMPS - CENTRIFUGAL (Horizontal & Vertical)

SlEDGEHAMMER OIl TOOlS PvT. lTD. INDIA CASING HARDWARE EQUIPMENT

BABCOCK vAlvES SA SPAIN INDUSTRIAL VALVES & MOV, ESDV, ETC.

PROCESS SRl ITALY THIRD PARTY INSPECTION SERVICES (PROCESS)

ARGEN TECH SOluTIONS INC. USA
FLY SENSOR PAYLOADS PRIMARILY ON UAS (Unmanned Aircraft 

Systems) AND DATA/IMAGE ANALYSIS SERVICES

YANTAI JEREH OIlFIElD SERvICES 

GROuP CO.
CHINA

ENGINEERING, PROCREMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OF JEREH 

OIL & GAS ENGINEERING CORPORATION.
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ACCREDITION / CERTIFICATION

 ENvIRONMENT PuBlIC
AuTHORITY

EIA STUDIES

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTATIONS

EVALUATION OF EXISTING ENVIRONMENTAL CONDI-

TIONS

MERCURY CONTAMINATED SOIL TREATMENT 

HALON MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

MINISTRY OF DEFENCE

MAINTENANCE OF FIRE ALARM 

AND FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM

 MINISTRY OF ElECTRICITY
WATER &

SUPPLY OF INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTATIONS SERVICES

SOIL INVESTIGATION

u.S- DOT

PRESSURIZED CYLINDER RETESTER›S IDENTIFICATION 

NUMBER 

DNv

SURVEY AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 

&  SYSTEMS

lloyods Register

SURVEY AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 

&  SYSTEMS

ISO 9001 : 2008

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

ISO 14001 : 2004

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING SERVICES INCLUD-

ING LABORATORY TESTING OF WATER, SOIL AND AIR 

SAMPLES AND EIA

ISO 17025 2005

TESTING LABORATORY TL-490

 KFD - KuWAIT FIRE
SERvICE DIRECTORATE

(GRADE 4) - FIRE ALARM  AND FIRE FIGHTING MAIN-

TENANCE SERVICES

NIPPON KAIJI KYOKAI

APPROVED AS A FIRM ENGAGED IN SURVEYS AND 

MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISHER EQUIPMENT AND 

SYSTEMS & SELF CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS

ROSPA

THE ROYAL SOCIETY FOR THE PREVENTION 

OF ACCIDENTS

NATIONAl SAFETY COuNCIl

CERTIFIED SAFETY INSTRUCTOR COURSE
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ERNST & YOUNG

Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners

P.O. Box 74

18-21st Floor, Baitak Tower

Ahmed Al-Jaber Street

Safat Square Bool, Kuwait

Tel.:  +965 2295 5000

Fax: +965 22456419

kuwait@kw.ey.com

ey.com/mena

Al-Shaheed Tower, 6th Floor

Khalid Ben Al-Waleed Street, Sharq, Kuwait

P.O. Box: 25578, Safat 13116 Kuwait

Telephone: +965  2242 6999

 Fax:            +965 2240 1666

www.bdointmational.com

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Petroleum Services Company 
K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), which comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of 
income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the State of Kuwait, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description 
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
a) Recognition and measurement of revenue
Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of the underlying products have been transferred to the 
customer or when the services have been rendered. Revenue for individual jobs are measured based on 
the contractual terms and master agreements that are agreed with customers relating to oil field services 
and non-oil field services. Due to multi-element nature of such jobs involving supply of goods which are 
of specialised nature and rendering of services that comprises supply of manpower and equipment usage 
charges, there is significant risk of misstatement in recognition and measurement of revenue. Therefore, 
we considered recognition and measurement of revenue as a key audit matter.
Our audit procedures, among other things, included assessing the appropriateness of Group’s revenue 
recognition accounting policies and compliance with those policies. Further, we performed test of details 
by verifying the revenue recognised to the underlying contracts, master agreements and records supporting 
delivery of goods and services rendered, including the testing of timing of revenue recognition through cut-
off procedures. We also performed substantive analytical review which included a detailed comparison of 
revenue and gross profit margin with the previous year and budgets as well as product wise detailed analysis. 
Disclosures relating to the policy for revenue recognition is given in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AuDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOlDERS OF NATIONAl 

PETROlEuM SERvICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
b) Provision for doubtful receivables
The Group does not follow any specific policy such as ageing analysis etc. relating to provision for doubtful 
trade receivables considering the nature of customers and specialized nature of the products and services 
that the Group provides. Generally, provision is determined on a case to case basis after considering 
the customer’s current financial position, risk of default, historical collection pattern, disputes relating to 
invoices raised and any other available information for assessing the credit worthiness of the counterparties 
or to assess any potential recoverability concerns relating to invoices raised. Due to significant estimation 
involved in the determination of provision, it is considered as a key audit matter. 
Our audit procedures included, among other things, testing of receivables where no provision was recognised 
to check that there were no indicators of impairment. This included verifying if payments had been received 
since the year-end, reviewing historical payment patterns and any correspondence with customers on 
expected settlement dates. We selected a sample of the larger trade receivable balances where a provision 
for impairment of trade receivables was recognised and understood the rationale behind management’s 
judgement. In order to evaluate the appropriateness of these judgements we verified whether balances 
were overdue, the customer’s historical payment patterns and whether any post year-end payments had 
been received up to the date of completing our audit procedures. We also obtained corroborative evidence 
including correspondence supporting any disputes between the parties involved, attempts by management 
to recover the amounts outstanding and on the credit status of significant counterparties where available. By 
performing the procedures mentioned above we also challenged management’s rationale where provisions 
were recognised on transactions that were not overdue as at the reporting date.
The disclosures relating to the estimation uncertainty relating to the provision for doubtful receivables is 
given in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and also the disclosures relating to the carrying 
amount of trade receivables is given in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included 
in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016, other than the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s 
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditors’ report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections 
of the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2016 after the date of our auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained 
prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AuDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOlDERS OF NATIONAl 

PETROlEuM SERvICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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ERNST & YOUNG

Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners

P.O. Box 74

18-21st Floor, Baitak Tower

Ahmed Al-Jaber Street

Safat Square Bool, Kuwait

Tel.:  +965 2295 5000

Fax: +965 22456419

kuwait@kw.ey.com

ey.com/mena

Al-Shaheed Tower, 6th Floor

Khalid Ben Al-Waleed Street, Sharq, Kuwait

P.O. Box: 25578, Safat 13116 Kuwait

Telephone: +965  2242 6999

 Fax:            +965 2240 1666

www.bdointmational.com

Key Audit Matters (continued)

b) Provision for doubtful receivables (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures 
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in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the 
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s 
Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We 
further report that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of 
our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the 
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, and its executive regulations, and by the Parent Company’s Memoran-
dum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, and its executive 
regulations, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association have 
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2016 that might have had a material effect on the business 
of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

WAlEED A. Al OSAIMI
lICENCE NO. 68 A
EY
Al AIBAN, Al OSAIMI & PARTNERS

         Qais M. Al-Nisf
licence No. 38 - A
BDO Al NISF & PARTNERS

21 February 2017
Kuwait
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENT of FINANCIAl POSITION

At 31 December 2016 

2016 2015
Notes KD KD

ASSETS -------------------------------- --------------------------------
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 8,367,545 9,047,928
Intangible assets 16,524 66,658
Financial assets available for sale 6 49,766 43,814

-------------------------------- --------------------------------

8,433,835 9,158,400
Current assets ============== ==============
Inventories 7 2,706,938 3,069,190
Trade receivables 8 8,070,180 5,541,628
Other receivables 9 893,662 346,129
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 2,396,954 141,245
Term deposits 11 4,000,000 4,000,000
Bank balances and cash 12 5,891,933 3,891,236

-------------------------------- --------------------------------

23,959,667 16,989,428
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

TOTAL ASSETS 32,393,502 26,147,828
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ============== ==============
Equity
Share capital 13 5,760,951 5,760,951
Share premium 14 3,310,705 3,310,705
Treasury shares 15 (585,062) (585,062)
Treasury shares reserve 33,825 33,825
Statutory reserve 16 3,541,472 2,723,364
Voluntary reserve 17 3,541,472 2,723,364
Foreign currency translation reserve 5,643 5,643
Cumulative changes in fair value 21,212 15,182
Retained earnings 9,124,176 6,414,335

-------------------------------- --------------------------------
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 24,754,394 20,402,307
Non-controlling interests 39,162 49,843

-------------------------------- --------------------------------
Total equity 24,793,556 20,452,150

============== ==============
Non-current liability
Employees’ end of service benefits 18 1,591,972 1,416,260

============== ==============
Current liability
Accounts payables and accruals 19 6,007,974 4,279,418

-------------------------------- --------------------------------
Total liabilities 7,599,946 5,695,678

-------------------------------- --------------------------------
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32,393,502 26,147,828

============== ==============

___________________________________

Omran Habib Jawhar Hayat

Chairman
The attached notes 1 to 29 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Notes KD KD

-------------------------------- --------------------------------

Sales and services revenue 27,002,458 19,609,382

Cost of sales and services (17,633,132) (13,112,396)
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

GROSS PROFIT 9,369,326 6,496,986

Other income 311,420 52,511

Net investments income 20 238,425 1,624,358

Write off/impairment of property, plant and equipment 5            (121,944) (665,857)

Administrative expenses 21 (1,607,954) (1,478,564)
============== ==============

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS, 

PROVISION FOR NLST, ZAKAT AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8,189,273 6,029,434

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) (73,703) (54,500)

National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (204,732) (151,389)

Zakat (85,816) (60,556)

Directors’ remuneration (115,000) (78,000)
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7,710,022 5,684,989
============== ==============

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company 7,701,828 5,682,281

Non-controlling interests 8,194 2,708
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

7,710,022 5,684,989
============== ==============

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

  ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

  PARENT COMPANY 22      137.71 fils      101.60 fils
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

The attached notes 1 to 29 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The attached notes 1 to 29 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 

CONSOlIDATED statement of COMPREHENSIvE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

KD KD

-------------------------------- --------------------------------

Profit for the year 7,710,022 5,684,989
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to consolidated 
statement of income in subsequent periods:

Change in fair value of financial assets available for sale 6,030 (5,585)

Foreign currency translation adjustment - 7,055
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

Other comprehensive income for the year 6,030 1,470
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

Total comprehensive income for the year 7,716,052 5,686,459
============== ==============

Attributable to:

 Equity holders of the Parent Company 7,707,858 5,682,339

 Non-controlling interests 8,194 4,120
-------------------------------- --------------------------------

7,716,052 5,686,459
============== ==============
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Notes KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES ----------------------------- -----------------------------
Profit for the year 7,710,022 5,684,989
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:
  Depreciation and amortization 1,538,069 1,651,287
  Write off/impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 121,944 665,857
  Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (3,711) (16,719)
  Net investments income 20 (238,425) (1,624,358)
  Interest income (6,884) -
  Write back of provision for doubtful debts - (102,667)
  Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 18 391,943 365,303

----------------------------- -----------------------------
9,512,958 6,623,692

Working capital adjustments:
  Inventories 362,252 (857,781)
Trade receivables (2,528,552) 920
Other receivables (547,533) 636,411

  Accounts payables and accruals 1,737,711 65,581
----------------------------- -----------------------------

Cash generated from operations 8,536,836  6,468,823
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 18 (216,231) (80,689)

----------------------------- -----------------------------

Net cash flows from operating activities 8,320,605  6,388,134
============= =============

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (930,987) (3,466,612)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5,202 51,325
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2,249,463) -
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 161,370 3,150,001
Dividend income received 20 82,224 8,708
Investment expenses paid 20 (11,337) -
Interest income received 6,884 -
Net movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (200)
Net movement in term deposits - (4,000,000)

----------------------------- -----------------------------
Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,936,107) (4,256,778)

============= =============
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid     (3,364,926) (2,490,903)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (18,875) -
Net movement in non-controlling interests - 45,723

----------------------------- -----------------------------
Net cash flows used in financing activities (3,383,801) (2,445,180)

============= =============

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN BANK BALANCES AND CASH 2,000,697 (313,824)

Foreign currency translation adjustment - 8,141

Bank balances and cash at 1 January 12 3,891,236 4,196,919
----------------------------- -----------------------------

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AT 31 DECEMBER 12 5,891,933 3,891,236
============= =============

The attached notes 1 to 29 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
The Group comprises National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries 
(collectively the “Group”). The Parent Company was established as a Kuwaiti shareholding Company on 3 
January 1993 and was listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange Market on 18 October 2003. The registered office 
of the Parent Company is at Industrial Shuaiba, Al-Ahmadi, Plot 3, P.O. Box 9801, 61008, Kuwait.
The objectives for which the Parent Company was incorporated for, are:
- Performing all support services for wells drilling, repairing and preparation for production as well as 
wells maintenance related services.
- Establishing industrial firms for the purpose of manufacturing and producing the equipments and 
materials necessary for achieving such objectives after obtaining the approval of the competent authorities.
- Importing and owning machines, tools and materials necessary for achieving its objectives.
- Owning lands and real estate necessary for establishing its entities and equipments.
- Importing and exporting chemicals necessary for the execution of the works stated in item no. (1) above.
- Concluding agreements and obtaining privileges which it deems necessary for the achieving its objectives.
- Possessing the needed patents, and trademarks.
- Obtaining and granting agencies in respect of the Parent Company’s business.
- Conducting studies, queries and researches relevant to the Parent Company’s objectives. 
The Parent Company may practice all of the above mentioned activities inside or outside the State of 
Kuwait. The Parent Company may also have an interest or participate in any way with entities practicing 
activities similar to its own or which may assist it in achieving its objectives inside or outside the state of 
Kuwait, or may acquire those entities or have them affiliated to it.
The consolidated financial statements of  the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 were authorised 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 21 February 
2017 and are subject to the approval of Annual General Assembly meeting of the shareholders of the 
Parent Company. The Annual General Assembly meeting of the shareholders has the power to amend 
these consolidated financial statements after issuance.
The new Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 24 January 2016 and it was published in the Official 
Gazette on 1 February 2016, which cancelled the Companies Law No 25 of 2012, and its amendments. 
According to article No. 5, the new Law will be effective retrospectively from 26 of November 2012. 
The new Executive Regulations of Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 12 July 2016 and was published in 
the Official Gazette on 17 July 2016 which cancelled the Executive Regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012.
Details of subsidiaries are given in Note 2.2.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to 
include the measurement at fair value of financial assets available for sale and financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss.
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is also the 
functional currency of the Group. 

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOlIDATION
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries (investees which are controlled by the Group) as at 31 December 2016. Control is achieved 
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls 
an investee if and only if the Group has:
•	 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
•	 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
•	 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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2.2 BASIS OF CONSOlIDATION (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers 
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

•	 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
•	 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
•	 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the 
statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 
to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) are 
attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this 
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s 
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction. 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), 
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries at 31 December, which is detailed below:

Effective ownership %

Entity

Country of 

incorporation

Principal

activities 2016 2015

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ

Napesco International 
Petroleum Services Single 
Person Company

Kuwait
Drilling & maintenance of 
oil wells and chemical waste 

management
100% 100%

Napesco India LLP (owned 
through Napesco International 
Petroleum Services Single 
Person Company)

India

Support activities for petro-

leum and natural gas mining 
incidental to onshore and off-

shore oil & gas extraction.

 79.99%  79.99%

Non-controlling interests 

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are 
presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive 

income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the equity 
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOuNTING POlICIES
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent 
with those used in the previous financial year, except for the adoption of the amendments to the existing 
standards relevant to the Group, effective as of 1 January 2016, which did not result in any material 
impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible 
Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business 
(of which the asset is a part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. 
As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may 
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied 
prospectively and do not have any impact on the Group, given that it has not used a revenue-based method 
to depreciate its non-current assets.
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments clarify:
•	 The materiality requirements in IAS 1
•	  That specific line items in the statement(s) of income and other comprehensive income and 

the statement of financial position may be disaggregated
•	 That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements
•	 That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for 

using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified 
between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of income.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented 
in the statement of financial position and the statement(s) of income and other comprehensive income. 
These amendments do not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.4 STANDARDS ISSuED BuT NOT YET EFFECTIvE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements 
are listed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable when they become effective.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments in its final form in July 2014 and is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with a permission to early adopt. IFRS 9 sets out the 
requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to 
buy or sell non- financial assets. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. The adoption of this standard will have an effect on the classification and measurement 
of Group’s financial assets but is not expected to have a significant impact on the classification and 
measurement of financial liabilities. The Group is in the process of quantifying the impact of this standard 
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements, when adopted.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective for periods 
beginning on 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. IFRS 15 defines principles for recognising 
revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with customers. However, interest and fee income integral 
to financial instruments and leases will continue to fall outside the scope of IFRS 15 and will be regulated 
by the other applicable standards (e.g., IFRS 9, and IFRS 16 Leases).
Revenue under IFRS 15 will need to be recognised as goods and services are transferred, to the extent 
that the transferor anticipates entitlement to goods and services. The standard will also specify a 
comprehensive set of disclosure requirements regarding the nature, extent and timing as well as any 
uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash flows with customers. The Group does not anticipate early 
adopting IFRS 15 and is currently evaluating its impact.
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2.4 STANDARDS ISSuED BuT NOT YET EFFECTIvE (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases 
The IASB issued the new standard for accounting for leases - IFRS 16 Leases in January 2016. The new 
standard does not significantly change the accounting for leases for lessors. However, it does require 
lessees to recognise most leases on their statement of financial position as lease liabilities, with the 
corresponding right- of-use assets. Lessees must apply a single model for all recognised leases, but will 
have the option not to recognise ‘short-term’ leases and leases of ‘low-value’ assets. Generally, the profit 
or loss recognition pattern for recognised leases will be similar to today’s finance lease accounting, with 
interest and depreciation expense recognised separately in the statement of income.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted 
provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the same date. Lessees must adopt IFRS 16 using either 
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group does not anticipate early adopting IFRS 16 
and is currently evaluating its impact.

3 SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POlICIES

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment and excluding discounts and rebates. The Group assesses its revenue arrange-
ments against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has 
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sale of goods

Sales represent the invoiced value of goods supplied net of returns. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods are transferred to the buyer, normally on delivery of goods.
Service income
Service income is recognized when the service is rendered.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.
Gain on sale of investments
Gain on sale of investments is measured by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the investment at the date of disposal, and is recognized at the time of the sale.
Taxation
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified 
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from 
shareholding associates and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’ remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve 
should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the contribution. 
National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Ministry of Finance 
Resolutions No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, 
cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit for the year.
Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the 
Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58/2007.
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3 SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POlICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and 
equipment up to the residual value, as follows:
Buildings                                20 years
Plant and Machinery                               10 years 
Furniture and fixtures                                        3 years 
Motor vehicles       3 years
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where 
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recover-
able amount, being the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and their value in use.
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for sepa-
rately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent ex-
penditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property, plant and 
equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as the expense is incurred.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carry-
ing amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised.
The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets represent payment made towards acquiring right to use software. Intangible assets are car-
ried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in value, if any.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment when-
ever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in 
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in ac-
counting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets. Amortisation is 
computed on straight line basis on the estimated useful lives of 3 years.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement 
of income when the asset is derecognised.
Financial instruments 

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets carried at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets available for sale, as 
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs except, in the case of financial 
assets not at fair value through profit and loss. 
A “regular way” purchase of financial assets is recognised using the trade date accounting. Regular way 
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time 
frame generally established by regulations or conventions in the market place.
The Group’s financial assets include financial assets available for sale, trade receivables, financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, term deposits and bank balances and cash. At 31 December 2016, the 
Group did not have any held-to-maturity investments.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:
Financial assets available-for-sale Financial assets available-for-sale are those non-derivative financial 
assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, 
investments held-to-maturity or loans and receivables.
After initial recognition, financial assets available-for-sale are subsequently measured at fair value with 
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the cumulative changes in fair 
values reserve until the investment is derecognised or determined to be impaired at which time the cumu-

lative gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Investments whose fair value 
cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at original invoice amount less a provision for any uncollectible amounts. An 
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts 
are written off when there is no possibility of recovery.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The category of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is sub divided into:

(a) Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition:
Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if they are managed, and their performance 
is evaluated on reliable fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy. After 
initial recognition financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are remeasured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when:
•	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
•	 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor trans-

ferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the 
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be 
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can 
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrowers or a group of 
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where 
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets available-for-sale
For financial assets available-for-sale, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset available-for-sale or a group of financial assets available-for-sale is impaired. 
In the case of equity investments classified as financial assets available-for-sale, objective evidence 
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its 
cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the 
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, 
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on those financial assets available-for-sale previously recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the 
consolidated statement of income; increase in their fair value after impairment is recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loan and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial 
liabilities at initial recognition.
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, directly 
attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables. At 31 December 2016, the Group did not have 
any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Accounts payables 
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether 
billed by the supplier or not.  
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modi-
fication is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which 
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
the fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
•	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
•	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
•	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
•	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value is 

directly or indirectly observable;
•	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value (continued)

For financial instruments quoted in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market 
prices. Bid prices are used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities. The fair value of investments 
in mutual funds, unit trusts or similar investment vehicles are based on the last published net assets value.
For unquoted financial instruments fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar investment, 
discounted cash flows, other appropriate valuation models or brokers’ quotes. For investments in equity instruments, 
where a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot be determined, the investment is carried at cost.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) 
at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
An analysis of fair value of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are 
provided in note 28.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing allowances for any 
obsolete or slow moving items. Costs comprise direct materials and where applicable, direct labour costs 
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of 
completion and selling expenses. Write-down is made for obsolete and slow-moving items based on their 
expected future use and net realizable value.
Bank balances and cash
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of, cash in 
hand, bank balances, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group 
and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this 
method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged in equity. When the treasury shares 
are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity (the “treasury shares reserve”), which is not 
distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance in that 
account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and statutory 
reserve. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously 
recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve account.  No 
cash dividends are paid on these shares.  The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares 
proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.
Employees’ end of service benefits
The Group provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement 
to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a 
minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. 
With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to Public Institution for Social 
security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these 
contributions, which are expensed when due.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Foreign currencies 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in KD which is the Group’s presentation currency. Each 
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of 
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at reporting date. All exchange differences are taken to the 
consolidated statement of income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using exchange rates as at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
the fair value was determined. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair 
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presen-
tation currency of the Group at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and their income state-
ments are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising 
on the translation are taken directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On disposal 
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign 
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are dis-

closed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed 
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it 
earns revenue and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate 
resources and assess performance. Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product 
and services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements require management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about 
the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the amount 
of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
Classification of financial instruments
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at 
acquisition.
The Group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities as held for trading if they are acquired 
primarily for the purpose of short term profit making.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Classification of financial instruments (continued)
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities as fair value through profit or loss depends on how 
management monitors the performance of these financial assets and financial liabilities. When they are not classified 
as held for trading but have readily available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of 
consolidated income statement in the management accounts, they are designated as fair value through profit or loss.
Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the Group is unable to trade 
these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable payments the 
financial asset is classified as loans and receivables. All other financial assets are classified as available-for-sale.
Impairment of financial assets available- for- sale
The Group treats available-for-sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. 
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, 
the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the 
future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.  
Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Fair value of unquoted equity investments
Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:
recent arm’s length market transactions;
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
an earnings multiple or industry specific earnings multiple;
the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics; 
other valuation models.  
The determination of the cash flows and discount factors for unquoted equity investments requires 
significant estimation.  There are a number of investments where this estimation cannot be reliably 
determined.  As a result, these investments are carried at cost less impairment.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets for calculating depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering the 
expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful 
lives annually and future depreciation and amortisation charge would be adjusted where the management 
believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication or objective evidence of impairment or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. If any such 
indication or evidence exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment of trade receivables 
An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the full amount is 
no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual 
basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively 
and a provision applied according to the length of time past due. 
Impairment of inventories
Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, 
an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is 
performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or 
obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree 
of ageing or obsolescence, based on anticipated selling prices.  
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture and 

fixtures Motor vehicles Total

KD KD KD KD KD
Cost ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 1 January 2016 2,827,278 17,914,150 643,613 447,510 21,832,551
Additions -   803,838 37,529 89,620 930,987
Disposals -   - - (8,650) (8,650) 
Write off - (504,904)     (67,316) - (572,220)

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 31 December 2016 2,827,278 18,213,084 613,826 528,480 22,182,668
Depreciation ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 1 January 2016 1,393,173 10,553,669 540,577 297,204 12,784,623
Charge for the year 122,255 1,144,555 118,824 102,301 1,487,935
Relating to disposals -   - - (7,159) (7,159)
Relating to write off (387,919) (62,357) - (450,276)

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 31 December 2016 1,515,428 11,310,305 597,044 392,346 13,815,123

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
Net carrying amount:
As at 31 December 2016 1,311,850 6,902,779 16,782 136,134 8,367,545

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ

Buildings

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture and 

fixtures Motor vehicles Total

KD KD KD KD KD
Cost ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 1 January 2015 2,827,278 14,675,227 596,491 375,215 18,474,211
Additions -   3,276,423 48,450 141,739 3,466,612
Disposals -   (37,500) -   (69,291) (106,791)
Foreign currency translation -   -   (1,328) (153) (1,481)

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 31 December 2015 2,827,278 17,914,150 643,613 447,510 21,832,551
Depreciation and  Impairment ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 1 January 2015 1,270,919 8,573,417 470,717 272,625 10,587,678
Charge for the year 122,254 1,317,833 70,251 93,330 1,603,668
Relating to disposals -   (3,438) -   (68,747) (72,185)
Foreign currency  translation -   -   (391) (4) (395)
Impairment charge for the  year -   665,857 -   -   665,857

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 31 December 2015 1,393,173 10,553,669 540,577 297,204 12,784,623
Net carrying amount: ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
As at 31 December 2015 1,434,105 7,360,481 103,036 150,306 9,047,928

ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
The depreciation charged has been allocated in the consolidated statement of income as follows:

2016 2015

KD KD
ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ

Cost of sales and services 1,412,361 1,534,999

Administrative expenses 75,574 68,669
ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ

1,487,935 1,603,668
ـــــــــــــــــــ ـــــــــــــــــــ
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Group`s buildings are constructed on land leased from Public Authority of Industry, which will 
expire on July 31, 2018. The lease is renewable indefinitely, at nominal rates of ground rent, and with no 
premium payable for renewal of the lease.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board of Directors approved for write off/impairment of 
plant and equipment (plant and machinery) at its net book value of KD 121,944 (2015: 665,857).

6 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Funds and managed portfolios 3,223 3,223
Quoted equity securities 46,543 40,591

---------------------------- ----------------------------
49,766 43,814

---------------------------- ----------------------------
7 INVENTORIES

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Cement and acidizing chemicals 1,826,728 2,206,100
Spare parts and tools 880,210 863,090

---------------------------- ----------------------------
2,706,938 3,069,190

---------------------------- ----------------------------
8 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Trade receivables 8,110,180 5,581,628
Less: provision for doubtful debts (40,000) (40,000)

---------------------------- ----------------------------
8,070,180 5,541,628

---------------------------- ----------------------------

As at 31 December 2016, the Group carries a provision of KD 40,000 (2015: KD 40,000) on trade 
receivables. Movement in provision for doubtful debts is as follows:

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
At 1 January 40,000 142,667
Written back during the year - (102,667)

---------------------------- ----------------------------
At 31 December 40,000 40,000

---------------------------- ----------------------------

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past due nor impaired <90 days 91-180 days >180 days Total
KD KD KD KD KD

2016 6,435,219 1,080,754 248,039 306,168 8,070,180
---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ----------------------------

2015 4,279,538 838,218 175,751 248,121 5,541,628
---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ----------------------------

It is not the practice of the Group to obtain collateral over trade receivables.
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9 OTHER RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Advance payments to suppliers 494,250 158,436
Staff receivables 280,560 155,306
Deposits and other receivable 118,852 32,387

---------------------------- ----------------------------
893,662 346,129

---------------------------- ----------------------------
10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

2016 2015
KD KD

Financial assets held for trading: ---------------------------- ----------------------------
Quoted equities 30,360 28,380

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss:
Funds and managed portfolios 2,366,594 112,865

---------------------------- ----------------------------
2,396,954 141,245

---------------------------- ----------------------------
The valuation techniques for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed in Note 28.

11 TERM DEPOSITS

Term deposits amounting to KD 4,000,000 (2015: KD 4,000,000) are denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and 
are placed with local banks and earn interest at commercial rates.
Term deposits have maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months from the placement date. 

12 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, bank balances and cash comprises the following:
2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Cash on hand 22,993 22,997
Bank balances 5,868,940 3,868,239

---------------------------- ----------------------------
5,891,933 3,891,236

---------------------------- ----------------------------
13 share capital AND DIVIDEND

Authorized, issued and fully paid

       2016        2015

KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
57,609,510 shares of  100 fils each, paid in cash 5,760,951 5,760,951

---------------------------- ----------------------------

The Board of Directors recommended distribution of a cash dividend of 80 fils per share (2015: 60 fils 
per share) and bonus shares of 42,390,490 shares (73.58% approximately on outstanding shares as at 
31 December 2016) (2015: nil).  The cash dividend, if approved in Annual General Assembly, shall be 
payable to the shareholders registered in the records of the Parent Company as of the date of the Annual 
General Assembly and the bonus shares, if approved in Annual General Assembly, shall be payable to the 
shareholders registered in the records of the Parent Company as of the date of the regulatory approval for 
distribution of bonus shares.
Dividend for the year ended 2015 was approved in the Annual General Assembly held on 20 April 2016 
and was paid during the year.
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14 Share premium

This represents cash received in excess of the par value of the shares issued. The share premium is not 
available for distribution except in cases stipulated by law.

15 Treasury shares

2016 2015
---------------------------- ----------------------------

Number of treasury shares 1,680,000 1,680,000
Percentage of issued shares 2.92% 2.92%
Market value (KD) 1,377,600 1,092,000
Cost (KD) 585,062 585,062

The balance in the treasury shares reserve of KD 33,825 (2015: KD 33,825) is not available for distribution. 
Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution throughout the 
holding period of treasury shares.

16 STATUTORY RESERVE

As required by the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for 
the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat 
and Board of Directors’ remuneration is transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve 
to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve totals 50% of paid up share capital. 
Distribution of the Parent Company’s statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the 

payment of a dividend of 5% of paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not 
sufficient for the payment of a dividend of that amount.

17 Voluntary reserve

As required by the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year attributable to 
equity holders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’ 
remuneration is transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a 
resolution of the Parent Company’s shareholders’ General Assembly upon a recommendation by the Board 
of Directors. There is no restriction on distribution of the voluntary reserve.

18 EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Movements in the provision recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
At 1 January 1,416,260 1,131,646
Charge for the year 391,943 365,303
Paid during the year (216,231) (80,689)

---------------------------- ----------------------------
At 31 December 1,591,972 1,416,260

---------------------------- ----------------------------
19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2016 2015
KD KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Trade payables 375,130 523,557
Staff accruals and other accrued expenses 4,581,035 2,723,276
Advance received from subcontractor 511,056 551,227
Accrued leave - 136,913
KFAS, NLST and Zakat payable 425,753 266,445
Directors’ remuneration 115,000 78,000

---------------------------- ----------------------------
6,007,974 4,279,418

---------------------------- ----------------------------
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20 NET INVESTMENT INCOME

       2016        2015
      KD       KD

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Dividend income 82,224 8,708
Realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 161,370 1,650,001
Impairment loss on financial assets available for sale (78) (302)
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,246 (34,049)
Investment expenses (11,337) -

---------------------------- ----------------------------
238,425 1,624,358

---------------------------- ----------------------------
21 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

     2016  2015
    KD  KD 

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Staff costs 1,102,444  970,450 
Professional fees 58,873  34,707 
Depreciation (Note 5) 75,574  68,669 
Selling and distribution expenses 182,061  149,752 
Others 189,002  254,986 

---------------------------- ----------------------------
1,607,954 1,478,564

---------------------------- ----------------------------
22 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company are calculated by 
dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares during the year, less weighted average number of treasury shares outstanding as follows:

       2016        2015

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company (KD) 7,701,828 5,682,281
---------------------------- ----------------------------

    Shares     Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 57,609,510 57,609,510
Less: weighted average number of treasury shares (1,680,000) (1,680,000)

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 55,929,510 55,929,510

---------------------------- ----------------------------
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders  of the Parent Company (fils) 137.71 101.60

---------------------------- ----------------------------
As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and diluted earnings per share are identical. 

23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2016 the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of letters of guarantee arising in the ordinary 
course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise, amounting to KD 6,642,556 
(2015: KD 4,210,804). Contingent liabilities have maturity of more than 12 months from the reporting date.

24 COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2016, Group has capital commitment for purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting 
to KD 3,614,265 (2015: KD 185,415). Commitments have maturity of less than 12 months from the reporting date.

25 SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on the products and services 
and has two reportable operating segments i.e. oil field services and  non-oil field services. Management 
treats the operations of these segments separately for the purposes of decision making, resource allocation 
and performance assessment. The segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.
Oil field services  
Oil field services comprise of cementing and stimulation formulations for different applications and operating 
environments for Oil Rigs. It mainly includes well cementing services, and well intervention services.
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26 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties represent the major shareholders, entities under the Parent Company’s common control, directors 
and key management personnel of the Group and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by 
such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Parent Company’s management.
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year is as follows:

     2016 2015

    KD KD 

-------------------------- --------------------------

Salaries and short-term benefits 426,756 448,092
Employees’ end of service benefits 16,674 16,674

-------------------------- --------------------------

443,430 464,766
-------------------------- --------------------------

The shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 20 April 2016 approved the proposed Board of 
Directors’ remuneration amounting to KD 78,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The Board of Directors have proposed directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016 
amounting  KD 115,000 and is subject to approval by Annual General Assembly.

27 RISK MANAGEMENT   
Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management 
is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for 
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, 
interest/profit rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. 
The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach 
and for approving the risk strategies and principles. No significant changes were made in the risk management 
objectives and policies during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. The management 
of the Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:

27.1  Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. 
Credit risk arises in the Group’s normal course of business. The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to 
customers by setting credit limits for individual customers and monitoring outstanding receivables.
Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group does not have any collateral or other credit enhancements against any of the financial assets at 
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, 
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments 
affecting a particular industry or geographic location. The Group minimises concentrations of credit risk 
by undertaking transactions with a large number of customers and with customers in various industries. 
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s 
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group’s 5 largest customers account for 96% (2015: 94%) of 
outstanding trade receivables at 31 December 2016.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to 
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount 
of these instruments. Bank balances are placed with reputable financial institutions.

NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

27.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity risk 
can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding 
to dry up immediately. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages 
assets with liquidity in mind and monitors liquidity on a daily basis. The Group’s credit sales require 
amounts to be paid within 60 to 90 days of the date of invoice and trade payables are normally settled 
within 60 to 120 days from the date of purchase.
The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities at 31 
December based on contractual payment dates.

31 December 2016

Less than

3 months

3 to 12 

months Total
KD KD KD

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------

Accounts payable (excluding advance received from 
subcontractor) 5,447,954 48,964 5,496,918

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------
31 December 2015

Accounts payable (excluding advance received from 
subcontractor) 523,557 481,358 1,004,915

-------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------
27.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to 
the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market.
Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, 
diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal 
of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value. 

27.3.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is not currently exposed significantly to such risk.

27.3.2 Foreign currency risk 
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities 
are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency. Foreign exchange risk is 
the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 
Foreign exchange risk is managed on the basis of limits determined by management and a continuous 
assessment of current and expected exchange rate movements.
The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at 31 December 
on its monetary assets and liabilities. The analysis calculates the effect of a 5 % change in currency rate 
against the Kuwaiti Dinar, with all other variables held constant on the consolidated statement of income: 

Effect on profit for the year         

2016 2015

KD KD
------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------

US Dollars 60,536 102,580
The exposure to other foreign currencies is not significant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
There is no direct impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.

NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016
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27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

27.3 Market risk (continued)

27.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from changes in the fair values of equity investments. The Group manages the equity price 
risk on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, a continuous appraisal of market 
conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value.
The effect on consolidated statement of income (as a result of a change in the fair value of financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss) and on consolidated statement of comprehensive income (as a result 
of a change in the fair value of financial assets available for sale) due to a reasonably possible change in 
market indices, with all other variables held constant is as follows:

2016

Market Indices
Change in equity

price %

Effect on
consolidated statement of income

KD

Effect on consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

KD
------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------
Kuwait Stock Exchange 5% - 2,312

Others 5%       1,518 15

2015

Market Indices
Change in equity

price %

Effect on
consolidated statement of income

KD

Effect on consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

KD
------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------------
Kuwait Stock Exchange 5% - 2,030
Others 5% 7,062 161

28 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. For financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are liquid or having a short-term maturity (less than three months), the carrying amounts 
approximate to their fair value.
The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the 
previous reporting period.  
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 3       Total
At 31 December 2016 KD KD         KD

Assets measured at fair value ------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------

Financial assets available for sale 46,543 3,223 49,766

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 30,360 2,366,594 2,396,954
------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------

76,903 2,369,817 2,446,720
------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------

Level 1 Level 3       Total

At 31 December 2015 KD KD         KD
------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets available for sale 40,591 3,223 43,814
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 28,380 112,865 141,245

------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------
68,971 116,088 185,059

------------------------- ------------------------- -------------------------
The fair value of the above investment securities is categorised as per the policy on fair value measurement 
in Note 2. Movement in level 3 is mainly on account of purchases and change in fair value. There were 
no transfers between the different levels of fair value during the year. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016
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28 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movement in Level 3 fair value hierarchy during the year is given below:

At 1 January 

2016

Net 

purchases 

and sales

Gain

recorded in consolidated 

statement of income

At 

31 December

2016

KD KD KD KD

----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets available for sale 3,223 -     - 3,223

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 112,865

2,249,463 4,266
2,366,594

----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

116,088 2,249,463 4,266 2,369,817

----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

At 1 January 

2015

Net 

purchases 

and sales

Loss

recorded in 

consolidated statement 

of income

At 

31 

December

2015

KD KD KD KD

----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets available for sale 3,223 -     - 3,223

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

1,644,074 (1,500,000) (31,209) 112,865

----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

1,647,297 (1,500,000) (31,209) 116,088
----------------------------- ---------------------- ------------------------------------------------ ----------------------

The fair value of the financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying value.

29 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic 
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. Capital represents equity 
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company and is measured at KD 24,754,394 as at 31 December 
2016 (2015: KD 20,402,307).

NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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